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EXHIBIT AA  1

This exhibit contains an official complaint that Guertin filed against Bruce M. Rivers with the
Minnesota Office of Lawyers Professional Responsibility. Notably, this complaint lays out the
fraudulent  discovery  issue  in  an  easy  to  understand visual  presentation  that  is  ordered  in  a
chronologically cohesive manner.

Furthermore,  this  complaint  contains  a  section at  the end detailing  Guertin’s  preferred  legal
strategy (that Bruce Rivers simply refuses to implement despite multiple direct requests from Mr.
Guertin), as well as documentation of Guertin’s refusal of a third Rule 20 exam meeting as well
as his reasoning behind this refusal.
______________________________________________________________________________

Index 01    |   USPS DELIVERY OF COMPLAINT TO MINNESOTA OFFICE OF LAWYERS
PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY

Index 02    |  EMAIL DELIVERY OF COMPLAINT TO MINNESOTA OFFICE OF 
LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY

Index 03    |   MR. GUERTINS MN OLPR COMPLAINT AGAINST BRUCE M. RIVERS

1 Make use of the bookmarks for easy navigation of this exhibit.  
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USPS Tracking
Tracking Number:

EI993543430US
Scheduled Delivery by

TUESDAY

24 September
2024

by
6:00pm

Your item was delivered to the front desk, reception area, or mail room at 1:57 pm on
September 24, 2024 in SAINT PAUL, MN 55101. The item was signed for by A BERTRAND.

Get More Out of USPS Tracking:
USPS Tracking Plus

Departed Post Office
CHASKA, MN 55318 
September 23, 2024, 5:08 pm

USPS in possession of item
CHASKA, MN 55318 
September 23, 2024, 1:44 pm

Hide Tracking History

Delivered
Delivered, Front Desk/Reception/Mail Room
SAINT PAUL, MN 55101 
September 24, 2024, 1:57 pm

https://tools.usps.com/go/TrackConfirmAction?tRef=fullpage&tLc=2&text28777=&tLabels=EI993543430US%2C
&tABt=false
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Formal MN OLPR Complaint Against Bruce M. Rivers
From   mattguertin <MattGuertin@protonmail.com>

To OLPRComplaintDocs@courts.state.mn.us

Date Tuesday, September 24th, 2024 at 3:19 PM

Good afternoon,

Attached is a PDF copy of my MN OLPR Complaint against Bruce M. Rivers. 

I am sending you this as a supplemental copy to the paper version that arrived at your office
earlier today via USPS.

This digital version maintains all of the PDF bookmarks - making navigation much easier when
considering the detail and length of the complaint.

Thank you very much,

Matthew D. Guertin
763-221-4540

Sent with Proton Mail secure email.

20.46 MB 1 file attached

MN-OLPR_Complaint_Bruce-M-Rivers.pdf 20.46 MB
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MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY

 COMPLAINT AGAINST BRUCE M. RIVERS

SUBMITTED BY MATTHEW D. GUERTIN
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VIDEO EVIDENCE SOURCES  |  DOWNLOAD LINKS

1. Analysis of Bruce Rivers July 16, 2024 Fraudulent Discovery Materials :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/0C6TA1GPJM#QREuUymnMZof

https://link.storjshare.io/s/jumx2gcm3vj4bkznfi5yodip67ha/video/Bruce-Rivers-
Discovery-Fraud-Analysis__7-16-24.mp4

2. Bruce Rivers Call Logs :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/ENM1DMP4R0#o0GxT4OpUddl

https://link.storjshare.io/s/jwc63dy7nhcybwm4ib744cfz6aqa/video/Bruce-Rivers-Call-
Logs.mp4

3. Bruce Rivers Early Texts – 01 :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/YBXZZW8F8R#nv1gLSyGmA8p

https://link.storjshare.io/s/jxv54uq4dna2frnbytcwvtorz3jq/video/Bruce-Rivers-Early-Texts-
01.mp4

4. Bruce Rivers Early Texts – 02 :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/8TCYRSCCY8#SGYe1ewc7Xgq

https://link.storjshare.io/s/juswfqceiglr3f5wkh74pscmkcnq/video/Bruce-Rivers-Early-Texts-
02.mp4

5. Bruce Rivers Retained Texts – 03 :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/HP60HREDQR#VPafBZ8c7X4Q

https://link.storjshare.io/s/jwrfm5xhdkuqtcbrjos5w75tnf7a/video/Bruce-Rivers-Retained-
Texts-03.mp4

6. Bruce Rivers Retained Texts – 04 :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/Z199N56RTR#jgFTj4OHYyyF

https://link.storjshare.io/s/juuz2yl2kg3kkwdem6bxtufglwfa/video/Bruce-Rivers-Retained-Texts-
04.mp4

7. CIA Welder Text History :

https://drive.proton.me/urls/APVKQK0ASM#iZOAnfseTPlN

https://link.storjshare.io/s/jvkrmqjhgqsob4efjds6jpw7eesa/video/CIA-Welder-Text-History.mp4
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I.   MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF LAWYERS PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY

COMPLAINT FORM 
 

 
 

Complaints cannot be filed against a firm, you must name an individual lawyer.  If you
have complaints regarding more than one lawyer, please complete a separate form for each. 

Fields denoted by * are required.

Middle: *Last: 
  

*State: *Zip Code: 
  

Work: N/A Cell: 763-221-4540 

May we or others contact you 
by email?   ______Yes ______No 

Email  Address:   
 
Do you need an interpreter?  If so, which language? 
 
Lawyer’s Name, Address and Phone Number 
*First Middle: *Last: 
   
*Address 1 
 
 

*City: *State: Zip Code 
   

Phone Numbers: 
Office: Cell: 

I am the:  (check one) 
    Client   
    Former Client   
    Opposing Party 

    Opposing Attorney   
    Creditor   
    Other   

 

Your Name, Address and Phone Numbers 
    Mr.      Mrs.      Miss       Ms. x

MN 55318

X

*First 
 
*Address 1 
 
  Address 2 
 
*City: 
 
Phone Numbers: 
Home: N/A 

Chaska 

1075 Traditions Ct.

Matthew D. Guertin

MattGuertin@protonmail.com

No

x

Bruce M. Rivers

701 Fourth Ave S.    Suite 300

Minneapolis MN 55415

612-472-2343612-339-3939
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If you are a client or former client, give the approximate date you hired the lawyer, and
the nature of your legal case. 

 
 If you are someone other than the client, please state your connection to the lawyer.   

 

 
*Complaint: Please state what the lawyer did or failed to do that you feel is unethical.
Please also attach copies of any documents that would help explain or support your
complaint. If you need more pages, please attach them.

 

 

 

*Dated: _______________________ Signature: ______________________________________ 

MAIL (or Email)  TO: 
Office of Lawyers Professional Responsibility 

445 Minnesota Street, Suite 2400 
St. Paul, MN  55101-2139 

(651) 296-3952 
Toll-Free 1-800-657-3601 

Fax (651) 297-5801 
OLPRComplaintDocs@courts.state.mn.us 

TTY USERS CALL MN RELAY SERVICE TOLL FREE 1-800-627-3529 

 If you have a disability and anticipate needing an accommodation, please contact Susan Humiston at  lprada@courts.state.mn.us
 or at 651-296-3952.  All requests for accommodation will be given due consideration and may require an interactive process
 between the requestor and the Office of Lawyers Professional Responsibility to determine the best course of action. If you
 believe you have been excluded from participating in, or denied benefits of, any Office of Lawyers Professional Responsibility
 service because of a disability, please visit www.mncourts.gov/ADAAccommodation.aspx for information on how to submit an
 ADA Grievance form.

  
 

Are you submitting documents with this complaint? 

    No  
    Yes x

/s/ Matthew D. Guertin09/14/2024

* Contained in Section II of this document *

* Contained in Section III and onwards in this document *

N/A
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II.   BACKGROUND AND NATURE OF THE CASES

I personally retained Bruce Rivers as my criminal defense attorney in early February of 2023.

His official ‘certificate of representation’ was submitted into my criminal case file on February

20, 2023.

___________________________________________________________________________

A.   Case Details

• My ‘dormant’ criminal case in the Hennepin County 4th Judicial District Court:

◦ 27-CR-23-1886
_____________________________________________________________________

• My civil commitment case in the Hennepin County 4th Judicial District Court:

◦ 27-MH-PR-23-815
_____________________________________________________________________

• My pro se ‘Petition for Discretionary Review’ case in the Minnesota Court of Appeals: 

◦ A24-0780
_____________________________________________________________________

• My pro se Federal Civil Rights Case in the MN District Court:

◦ ‘Guertin v. Hennepin County, 24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM’

CourtListener.com/docket/68925331/guertin-v-hennepin-county/
_____________________________________________________________________

• My pro se interlocutory appeal to the 8th Circuit Court of Appeals:

◦ ‘Matthew Guertin v. Hennepin County, 24-2662’

CourtListener.com/docket/69060054/matthew-guertin-v-hennepin-county/
___________________________________________________________________________

B.   My Current Status Within the Hennepin County 4th Judicial District Court

• I  am currently  under  a  ‘stayed order  of  civil  commitment’ based upon my supposed

‘incompetency to stand trial’ – which is something I have been contesting during the

entire duration of my Hennepin County court cases. 

My criminal charges originated on January 21, 2023 and consist of:

• One Count:

‘Reckless Discharge of Firearm Within a Municipality’ - Mn § 609.66.1a(a)(3)

3
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• Three Counts:

‘Firearm-Serial Number-Receive/Possess With No Serial Number’ - Mn § 609.667(3) 

◦ It  is  relevant  to  mention  that  my  three  charges  for  ‘No  Serial  Number’ under

Minnesota Statute § 609.667(3) are currently awaiting a decision by the Minnesota

Supreme Court due to the statute being ‘constitutionally vague’ – something I can

personally attest to due to the fact that I personally spent many hours researching and

investigating as much information as I could find online in order to make sure I was

not breaking any laws prior to building my personal use firearms during the summer

of 2020.

The pending decision from the Minnesota Supreme Court involves the case of State v.

Vagle, 999 N.W.2d 909 (Minn. Ct. App. 2023) 1

Due to my current status of being deemed ‘incompetent to stand trial’ my pending charges have

not technically been prosecuted as of yet within the Hennepin County Court. 

Furthermore, due to the fact that I am currently under a ‘stayed order of civil commitment’ I also

am not technically ‘committed’ based upon the commonly understood language and definitions

of the courts rules and guidelines. This technically places me in a sort ‘gray area’ so to speak –

one which  actually  makes it  possible  for  me to pursue my federal  civil  rights  case  without

running into any issues involving the criteria set forth in Heck v. Humphrey, 512 U.S. 477 (1994)

for example – something I in fact preemptively addressed in section VII of my federal civil rights

complaint.

1 State v. Vagle, A23-0863, 999 N.W.2d 909 (Minn. Ct. App. 2023):
https://casetext.com/case/state-v-vagle-3
Minnesota Supreme Court grants petition for review in State v. Vagle, A23-0863:
https://www.johnsonericksonlaw.com/blog/250w0r0iyuxhevwx9tbjuwvchstmzr
Minnesota Statute §609.667 vs privately made firearm: 
https://gallagherdefense.com/2023/12/17/privately-made-firearm/

4
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C.   General Overview of My Reasons for Filing This Complaint

All three of my pro se filed cases (MN COA, MN District Court, and 8th Circuit COA)

directly address, and involve the very concerning, and blatantly unethical actions, and

behavior of my current defense counsel, Bruce M. Rivers. What is currently taking place

insofar as his outright refusal to withdrawal from my case despite three direct requests, a

pro se filed motion for substitute counsel, and being named a defendant in my federal

case  is  unprecedented  in  my  opinion  as  his  actions  defy  all  logic  and  commonly

understood actions that an attorney in his position would normally be expected to take. 

In fact, it is the sheer amount of ‘issues’ and unethical actions involving Bruce M. Rivers

as a whole that is the entire reason why I felt it necessary to submit this complaint in the

form of a structured legal brief of sorts as there is no other possible way I’d be able to

adequately convey the substantial amount of information otherwise. 

All  of  these  concerns  are  covered  in  great  detail  in  the  subsequent  sections  of  this

complaint.

III.       MINE AND BRUCE RIVERS LONGSTANDING RELATIONSHIP  

A.   Background

I have known Bruce Rivers for nearly 25 years at this point, as I first met him when I was

just 19 or 20 years old. This completely random introduction took place after I received a

‘Pedestrian on the Freeway’ ticket for writing "Fire Denny Green" outside the Minnesota

Vikings' training facility by trudging through the fresh snow with me feet as I jumped

from each giant letter, to the next. The incident gained local, and national media attention

which included helicopter shots of my ‘snow writing’ being shown on cable sports show

at the time, in addition to me calling into a local radio station and being interviewed on

the air about it. 

When I told the radio station I received a ticket for my actions, the radio station solicited

an attorney to  call  in and represent me pro bono -  Bruce Rivers is  the one who got

through and ended up representing me. The ticket ended up resulting in a $25 total fine,

5
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and the prosecutor I ended up meeting at the Hennepin County Court in Minnetonka was

actually excited to meet me as he thought what I did was hilarious

Following this incident I would end up retaining Bruce Rivers for various other legal

troubles I had a habit of getting into when I was younger - almost all of which involved

alcohol in one form or another, but never any violent offenses. The last time I actually

retained Bruce Rivers prior to February of 2023, was in 2007 - 16 years prior. Many of

my personal  friends have also retained Bruce Rivers,  and in general  Bruce Rivers  is

considered to be a  skilled,  and highly sought  after  attorney which makes my current

situation with him that much more out of character, unusual, and concerning as me and

Bruce Rivers have always maintained a trusting, and friendly relationship over the years. 

What I would characterize as our ‘friendship’ is in fact clearly evident based on all of our

communications that took place prior to the “powerful people” comment he made on May

22, 2023 at  3:13 PM over the phone as I  actually maintain many text messages,  call

records, and emails between us spanning all the way back to spring of 2020 – which is

when I first moved back to Minnesota from Los Angeles due to Covid. 

B.   Mine and Bruce Rivers Interactions Prior to Retainining Him in Early February 2023

I first got in contact with Bruce Rivers again shortly after I moved back to Minneapolis

from Los Angeles in early April of 2020 due to one of my friends getting a DWI – and so

of course I told him to call Bruce Rivers. Just as I had told many friends before him as

Bruce Rivers has always been my go-to guy for all things legal. 

Following this brief exchange I ended up reaching out to Bruce many times for all sorts

of legal questions,  referals, and guidance.  Besides contacting him to ask questions or

obtain something from him I would also send him random messages such as excitedly

sharing my new business and patent adventure with him that came into being not long

after.

Video verification of the following text messages can be downloaded via the following two links:

• Early Bruce Rivers Texts-01:  Drive.Proton.Me/urls/YBXZZW8F8R#nv1gLSyGmA8p
• Early Bruce Rivers Texts-02:  Drive.Proton.Me/urls/8TCYRSCCY8#SGYe1ewc7Xgq

6
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These  screencap  videos  from my  phone  provide  a  lot  of  additional  insight  and  context  as

opposed to simply viewing the images below.

7

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 7

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 18 of 128



As further proof of Bruce Rivers being the person I have always turned to for any and all legal

matters, he was in fact the first, and only other ‘legal expert’ besides my patent attorney that I

contacted right away upon my initial discovery of the Stephan Trojansky patent application I had

8
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inadvertently stumbled across the evening of November 8, 2022 only to realize it was for the

exact same technology contained in my soon to be granted US Patent 11,577,177.

Video verification of all Bruce Rivers call logs can be downloaded via the following link:

◦ Bruce Rivers Call Log : Drive.Proton.Me/urls/YBXZZW8F8R#nv1gLSyGmA8p

During the early, Friday morning hours of November 11, 2022 I called and spoke to Bruce Rivers

at 6:48 AM about the exciting, yet somewhat concerning situation I had suddenly found myself

in. We spoke for nearly 12 minutes as I explained all of it to him, hoping to come away with

some sort of guidance and advice.
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Less than an hour after hanging up from our call he had an email in his inbox from me that

included  a  complete  informational  packet  I  had  assembled  of  all  pertinent  background

information for the patent application we had discussed just moments prior.
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Friday, January 13, 2023:

• I sent the following email to Mr. Rivers in the hopes that he may be able to recommend
someone who would be able to help investigate that patent fraud I had been witnessing
take place for nearly five weeks at that point. Not only had I been ‘witnessing’ – but I had
also been activiely conducting my own personal investigation the entire  time as well
which  involved  downloading  and  collecting  a  substantial  amount  of  digital  forensic
evidence in order to try and protect what I had dedicated nearly the last two years straight
of my life to at that point.
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C.   Origination of My Criminal Charges

January 21, 2023:

• Just eight days after sending the above email to Bruce Rivers seeking help for the patent

fraud situation I was witnessing I would be arrested for firing a gun into the air for the

explicit purpose of ‘calling’ the police via a very loud, and unmistakable analog sound

due to all of my electronic devices being hacked into, my realization that Bluetooth was

being employed to still access my computer somehow even though my ethernet cable had

been unplugged from the internet and my Wi-Fi adapters disabled, and a rather abrupt

realization that what had initially started out feeling like a computer game had suddenly

become very real – especially considering the extremely limited range of Bluetooth.

Those helping to carry out the patent fraud I had been investigating from afar via the

safety of the internet and a computer monitor had now apparently ended up right outside

my door as far as I was concerned. An acute stress reaction in which I quietly sat frozen

in fear for nearly two days trying to figure out what I should do ended up being the result,

followed  by  my  intended  goal  of  being  arrested  and  exiting  my  apartment  –  rather

traumatized, but alive – and safe.
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• Now  that  mine  and  Bruce  Rivers  long-standing,  and  friendly  relationship  has  been

thoroughly established I believe what is  taking place currently should become all  the

more obvious, and concerning.

The following sections are ordered based on the most serious ethical violations of Bruce

Rivers being listed first – as there is essentially an entire laundry list of blatant violations

of his to contend with currently.

IV.   CONSPIRACY AGAINST ME UTILIZING FRAUDULENT DISCOVERY

A.   First Set of FRAUDULENT DISCOVERY | Originated From Within the Court

August 3, 2023:

• My court  appointed  attormey  at  the  time,  Michael  Biglow,  insisted  on  emailing  me

discovery photographs that I never asked for, or requested. Because of this I didn’t even
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end up opening the document and examining them for the first time until approximately

two months after their initial receipt in my inbox.

• The PDF that Biglow emailed to me contains a total of 80 police photos and is named:

‘ 23-815 Guertin – photos of exterior, interior, person 1.21.pdf ’
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August 1, 2023:

• This  first  set  of  discovery  photos  were  provided  to  the  psychological  examiner,  Dr.

Michael Robertson who conducted a 45 minute long civil commitment interview with me

over Zoom, on August 1, 2023 - just two days prior. This same PDF discovery document

titled ‘23-815 Guertin – photos of exterior, interior, person 1.21’ is listed in his exam

report as ‘Documents reviewed’.

March, 2023:

• In  Dr.  Jill  Rogstad’s  March,  2023 Rule  20.01 report  that  she  prepared  she  does  not

include a document title  at  all  but  instead lists  104 photographs under the ‘Records

Reviewed’ section in her document.

A difference of 24 photographs between the two reports...
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January 3, 2024:

• A few hours before my scheduled Rule 20.01 exam meeting with Dr. Adam Milz I send

him an email in which I make mention of the fraudulent discovery materials.
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January 5, 2024:

• Based upon this discrepancy of the total quantity of discovery photographs, in addition to

various other anomolies I identified after initially inspecting this first set of discovery

photos I filed my first ever court motion - a ‘Demand or Request for Discovery’ in which

I’m explicitly seeking the provision of “All 104 police photographs”
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Not only did the court ignore my request for discovery, but so did Bruce Rivers despite bringing

the discovery discrepancies directly to his attention, along with multiple direct requests that he

provide me with the authentic discovery materials.
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April 4, 2024:

• I submitted a pro se ‘Motion to Compel Discovery’ into my case which not only sought

provision of discovery once again, but which also contained a very thorough, and detailed

forensic analysis that I personally prepared. 
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My analysis revealed that the only photographs that didn’t maintain uniform aspect ratios were

those taken   inside   of my apartment   – with a total of 28 out of the 80 total images  identified as

being selectively (manually) cropped for the purpose of presenting a false narrative through what

is obviously the very calculated, and intentional omission of various elements.
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Once  I  became aware  that  it  was  only  the  images  taken inside  of  my apartment  that  were

cropped, the obvious question then became “what is being cropped out?...what are they trying to

hide?” In order to figure this out I utilized the very noticeable ‘barrel distortion’ present in the

images.  This  distortion  is  the  result  of  the  wide  angle  lens  that  was  used  when  taking  the

photographs,  and can be thought  of as the ‘fish-eye effect’.  Based on the fact that this  lens

distortion is always centered and uniform in all photographs it isn’t very difficult to accurately

estimate the ‘true’ horizontal center position of the  original photographs (BEFORE they were

cropped..) by utilizing vertical structual elements captured in the images.
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It is highly relevant to also point out that one of the very first  ‘issues’ I noticed right away

(besides the discrepancy of 80 photos vs. 104 photos..) when I first opened up the PDF file was

the artifacts that only appeared in photo ‘30-50’ which contained a photo of my laptop screen.
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My second pro se motion attempting to obtain discovery materials was once again completely

ignored by the court, as well as by Bruce Rivers despite additional direct requests once again for

him to provide me with the authentic discovery.

May 3, 2024:

• I submitted a pro se follow-up correspondence into my criminal case record in which I

was once again attempting to obtain the discovery materials from the court as well as my

Rule 20.01 exam report from four months prior that also had not been provided to me. In

this correspondence I also address the continuing failure of Bruce Rivers to provide me

with these missing documents – all of which are critically important insofar as being able

to adequately defend myself and also required to be provided to me based upon the rules

of the court itself.
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June 3, 2024:

• I submit a  3rd pro se ‘Motion to Compel Discovery’ into my criminal case –  STILL

ATTEMPTING  TO  OBTAIN  THE  AUTHENTIC  DISCOVERY  MATERIALS  FOR  MY

CRIMINAL CASE.
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June 3, 2024:

• In addition to my 3rd ‘Motion to Compel Discovery’ I also submit a 2nd pro se follow-up

correspondence into my criminal case on this same day.
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June 6, 2024:

• I send Bruce Rivers a text message making a direct reference to the fraudulent discovery

materials I presented in my April 4, 2024 motion at Index # 29 in my case.
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B.   Second Set of FRAUDULENT DISCOVERY | Originated Directly from Bruce Rivers 

July 16, 2024:

• Following the filing of my federal civil rights complaint on July 8, 2024 in which Bruce

Rivers is named as a defendant, I attended my July 16, 2024 review hearing at 1:30 PM at

the Hennepin County government center in downtown Minneapolis.

Upon making it up to the court room Bruce Rivers pulled me out into the hallway outside

of the court room where we discussed the federal case I had just filed against him. The

details and content of our discussion will  be discussed in subsequent sections of this

complaint in more detail.

Following my brief appearance in front of the judge, myself, Bruce Rivers, and a female

companion of his (who had been sitting on a bench outside of the court room the entire

time) all made our way to the elevator where we rode down, and then exited the building.

Once we were outside of the building Bruce instructed me to go up to his office (directly

across the street from government center) where his secretary would finally provide me

with the discovery materials I had been asking for.

Upon making it up to Bruce Rivers office I sat in the reception area for approximately ten

minutes or so while his secretary was on the computer preparing a USB flash drive with

the discovery materials. I chatted with her as this was happening and our interactions

were cordial and friendly. A short time later I was handed a black USB flash drive at

which point I left the office and drove back to my residence.

I briefly accessed the USB flash drive when I arrived home to see what it contained but

would not end up conducting a thorough examination of its contents until approximately

a week or so later due to work obligations.  Once I was finally able to sit  down and

conduct an examination of the discovery materials I had been provided by Bruce Rivers, I

made  sure  to  thoroughly  document  everything  for  evidentiary  purposes.  This

documentation process included detailed documentation of all of the files on the USB, the

folder structure and contents, and metadata analysis.
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July 18, 2024:

• Me and Bruce Rivers had the following text exchanges a couple days after he provided

me with the discovery materials. Due to him obtaining a new cell phone number I was

not initially aware of  who it was that was actually texting me, and so I assumed that it

must be his female companion that had been with him when we met at court on July 16.

◦ Video verification of these text messages taking place on Bruce Rivers new cell phone 

number can be downloaded via the following link:

Bruce Rivers New # : D  rive.  P  roton.me/urls/NDERJNF734#Mfc9c0LYDS3Y  
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July 25, 2024:

• After completing my initial examination of the discovery materials provided to me by

Bruce Rivers I sent him an email in which I addressed the missing images that were

present in the initial set of discovery materials provided to me by Michael Biglow on

August 3, 2023.
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I cross referenced the 518 images contained in the new set of discovery with the 80 images

contained in the initial discovery I had received nearly a year prior.

I  utilized the same table  contained in  my April  4,  2024 ‘Motion to  Compel  Discovery’ and

simply updated the sixth column so that it now contained the corresponding (matching) image

data from the new set of discovery that was provided to me on July 16.

What this revealed is rather profound:

The discovery provided to me by Bruce Rivers is missing the same 28 images
that I initially identified as being cropped in my analysis of the first set of
discovery materials.
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The fact that the July 16, 2024 discovery provided to me by Bruce Rivers is
missing the same exact 28 images I identified as being cropped is MASSIVE.

• If the July 16 discovery were in fact ‘authentic’ it would mean that it has been in Bruce

Rivers possession since early 2023 as Bruce Rivers submitted a ‘Demand or Request for

Discovery’ into my criminal case 27-CR-23-1886 on February 20, 2023 (Index 10)

• I received the first set of discovery materials from Michael Biglow until August 3, 2023.

Even though I initially recognized discrepancies in the total quantity of images, as well as

noticing the pixelation artifacts in the image containing my laptop screen – I didn’t ever

notice the issue of  non-uniform aspect  ratios  until  I  specifically  sat  down and began

preparing  my April  4,  2024 ‘Motion  to  Compel  Discovery’.  The  realization  of  non-

uniform aspect ratios is what, in turn also lead to the realization of the lens warping that

was present in the images at which point I was able to then utilize all of these newly

discovered image forensic elements to be able to compile the data contained in the table,

as well as arrive at a much clearer understanding overall about the reasoning behind the

cropping taking place to begin with. This means that all of these realizations occurred

only a day or two before I actually submitted the finished motion on April 4, 2024.

• BRUCE RIVERS KNOWINGLY OBTAINED THE FRAUDULENT DISCOVERY 
MATERIALS HE PROVIDED ME WITH SOMETIME AFTER I FILED MY APRIL 4, 
2024 MOTION AS THAT IS WHEN THE 28 IMAGES BEING CROPPED WOULD’VE 
FIRST BECAME PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE.

• The validity, and credibility of ALL of my civil commitment proceedings, as well as my

entire criminal case itself are now all irreperably tainted beyond repair. This means that

ALL of  my Hennepin County Court  proceedings that  are  currently taking place as  a

whole are invalidated based on a conspiracy involving Bruce Rivers, the prosecution, the

court itself, and obviously some very ‘powerful’ external influences.

• The fact that the initial  set  of discovery photos I received were manually cropped to

portray a false narrative about the origination of my criminal charges themselves AND

that part of this carefully crafted, and calculated deception was focused on concealing my

patent and business related endeavors insofar as the intentional exclusion of books about
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corporate  start-ups,  intentionally  cropping  out  of  items  related  to  filming,  lighting,

designing, engineering, fabrication, my professional workstation, and my actual invention

itself that served as the rather prominent, bright green ‘center piece’ of my living room

turned fabrication and design studio DIRECTLY TIES THE ONGOING FRAUDULENT

DISCOVERY  CONSPIRACY  TO  THE  ORIGINATION  OF  MY  CRIMINAL

CHARGES THEMSELVES – Meaning that the very same nefarious actors that I claimed

hacked into my computers, and conducted illegal intelligence and surveillance operations

as part of the criminal conspiracy targeting the theft of my intellectual property contained

in US Patent 11,577,177 – are now also the very same nefarious actors involved in the

conspiracy taking place in my court cases currently. 

• This situation is completely unprecedented and surreal – I can personally attest to this as I

have been the one living through it.

• The other profound aspect of the missing 28 images is the fact that there is absolutely

zero defense, explanation, or any sort of ability to ‘correct’ the problem behind the scenes

due  to  the  unique  situation  that  currently  exists.  Because  I  already  documented  the

images identified as being cropped in my April 4 motion, and because those images are

now missing from the subsequent set of discovery materials provided to me by Bruce

Rivers  means  that  my  claim  doesn’t  even  rely  on  the  authenticity  of  the  discovery

materials provided to me on July 16 – meaning there are no arguments pertaining to the

chain of custody, or the possibility that I could have perhaps manipulated the images, or

altered  them  in  some  way  as  my  claim  ultimately  pertains  to  the  missing  images

themselves that have been irrefutably proven to have existed, but no longer do.

The entire scenario regarding the fact that there is no possible defense, argument, or solution that

currently exists that would allow Bruce Rivers, or those he is conspiring with behind the scenes,

to remedy this situation in any kind of meaningful or effective manner is something which was in

fact submitted as evidence ‘Exhibit Y’ into my federal civil rights case on September 2, 2024,

and is as follows -
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Not only is there the irrefutable issue of the missing 28 images that I identified in the July 16
discovery materials – BUT – there is also an additional, and direct connection to the first set of
discovery materials, as well as the origination of my criminal charges based on the documented
artifacts that were only present in the photographs containing my laptop screen I had left sitting on
my kitchen table. In the initial set of discovery there was only a single image of my laptop screen
with the artifacts – IN THE JULY 16 DISCOVERY   ALL   OF THE IMAGES CONTAINING  
MY LAPTOP SCREEN HAVE BEEN MANIPULATED USING ADVANCED Ai.
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C.   Conclusion

The ongoing conspiracy against me involving the introduction of fraudulent discovery into my case

as an attempt to try and ensure I would be unjustly committed to a mental institution, along with
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Bruce Rivers direct involvement in not only refusing to address the topic as part of my defense

startegy – but in fact being directly involved in helping to further the conspiracy through the

procurement of a second set of fraudulent discovery materials sometime after I filed my April 4,

2024 ‘Motion to Compel Discovery’ which he then provided me with under the pretense that they

were ‘authentic’ - insofar as being in his possession since early 2023 -  presents a completely

unprecedented situation that necessitates an immediate investigation.

This is especially true in light of the October 1, 2024 review hearing that is scheduled before the

court as an apparent ‘continuance’ of my previous review hearing during which time I have made

several direct requests to Bruce Rivers that I am not going to participate in third Rule 20.01 exam

meeting with a court that is engaged in fraudulent actions against me. I have suggested a contested

competency  hearing,  an  entirely  neutral  3rd  party  examiner  with  ZERO  connections  to  the

Hennepin County Courts, a change of venue, and requested multiple times that he address the

fraudulent discvoery issue – all of which have fallen on deaf ears - as Bruce Rivers appears to be

insistent on ensuring that I participate in another Rule 20.01 exam while at the same time he is

pretending that my many rational requests I have made as part of my preferred legal strategy are

part of my supposed ‘psychotic disorder’ I am suffering from which is being perpetuated as part of

the blatantly false narrative of my supposed incompetence that is being supported by both Bruce

Rivers as well as the court currently it would appear.

Part  of this  narrative attempts to portray me as some sort  of ‘paranoid schizophrenic’ who is

plagued by a constant belief that ‘everyone is out to get me’ yet it is very clearly evident in my

email interactions with my court appointed attorney, Joel Fisher, as well as the fact that I have been

discussing my concerns with my mental health case worker I meet with, that there most certainly

are people I’ve met within the courts whom I actually do trust. This even extends to the county

attorney Lea DeSouza who is representing the state in my civil commitment proceedings, as well

as Nadia Garavito, whom I first met during my initial civil commitment proceedings.

The fact that I can name off a list of people whom I actually do trust that are all directly involved

with the court  system - YET the person I  currently do not  trust  AT ALL is  someone I  have

personally known for nearly 25 years speaks volumes I believe.
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V.   BRUCE RIVERS REFUSAL TO WITHDRAWAL AS MY DEFENSE COUNSEL  

A.   Introduction

I have directly asked Bruce Rivers to withdrawal as my defense counsel three times so far in

addition to submitting a pro se ‘Motion for Substitue Counsel’ into my criminal case following

the  courts  denial  of  my  ‘Petition  to  Proceed  as  Pro  Se  Counsel’  due  to  my  supposed

‘incompetence’.

Despite these direct requests, as well  as Bruce Rivers proven knowledge of my federal civil

rights case against him – in which I currently have an ‘Entry of Default’ against him – he still

REFUSES TO WITHDRAWL AS MY DEFENSE COUNSEL,  while  at  the  same time also

refuses to take any of the actions I have been suggesting to him as my desired defense strategy

for my case. This amounts to a completely surreal situation currently where I am basically being

‘held hostage’ by both Bruce Rivers and the Hennepin County court itself without any ability to

defend myself, while at the same time Bruce Rivers is not only failing to advocate for me, but is

instead directly acting against my best interests while also now being DIRECTLY implicated in

the broader conspiracy against me surrounding the discovery fraud itself. 

The fact  that  I  have known Bruce Rivers  for  nearly 25 years  at  this  point  and he has now

suddenly shifted to a position where he is  actively participating in the false narrative of my

supposed ‘incompetence’ is extremely concerning – this is especially true when juxtaposed with

mine and his friendly, and cordial interactions at the beginning of my case back in early 2023,

which remained as just that up until the point that he made his comment about “powerful people

keeping an eye on me” – something that will be addressed in a subsequent section in more detail.
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April 3, 2024:

• I  send Bruce Rivers the following email  kindly requesting that he withdrawal as my

defense counsel.
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April 18, 2024:

• I  send  Bruce  Rivers  the  following  text  message  kindly  requesting  that  he  please

withdrawal as my defense counsel so that I can retain someone else to represent me.
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April 22, 2024:

• I send the following email to my current court appointed attorney that is representing me

in  my civil  commitment  proceedings.  I  attach  my April  4,  2024 ‘Motion  to  Compel

Discovery’ to this email and go into great detail about what is currently taking place, my

concerns, and am very coherently, and rationally seeking solutions and advice for my

many legitimate concerns.
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April 23, 2024:

• My court appointed attorney replies to my email with the following:
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June 3, 2024:

• I submit a pro se ‘Motion for Substitute Counsel’ into my criminal case highlighting

Bruce Rivers ineffective assistance of counsel as set forth in the criteria established in

Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984) - which Minnesota uses as its ‘two-prong

test’ when determining whether or not a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel is valid

or not. This pro se motion of mine is requesting that a public defender be assigned to my

case to replace Bruce Rivers. 

This motion is ignored by the court and never ruled on.
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June 6, 2024:

• I send Bruce Rivers a text message with a  3rd request for him to withdrawal as my

defense counsel. In this exchange I am much more direct with my request.
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September 9, 2024:

• I submitted ‘Exhibit Z’ into my federal civil rights case which includes the following

analysis  I  conducted  using  chatGPT  to  analyze  my  August  7,  2024  ‘Motion  for

Preliminary Injunction’ in which I go into great detail about the many failures of Bruce

Rivers.
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September 13, 2024:

• I had a one hour in-person meeting with my mental health case worker that I meet with

once a month as part of satisfying the terms of my ‘Stayed Order of Civil Commitment’

agreement I signed back in August of 2023. During this meeting I once again discussed

my concerns  about  what  is  currently  taking place  insofar  as  Bruce  Rivers  refusal  to

withdrawal from my case - As a result my case worker sent this email to me during the

course of our meeting that began at the scheduled time of 9 am that morning.
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B.   Conclusion

Given these points, it is clear that Bruce Rivers must withdraw as my defense attorney to ensure

that I have someone whom I trust that is actively advocating on my behalf. The evidence of

Bruce  Rivers  compromised  position  currently  and  his  direct  involvement  in  the  fraudulent

discovery, refusal to take the suggested actions I have requested as part of my desired defense

startegy, and his highly unusual behavior as a whole, serves as a significant barrier to me being

able to adequately defend myself not only against the criminal case, but the very real possibility

of an unjust commitment  based on fraud, and an attempt to prevent  the truth about  what  is

currently taking place from ever being revealed or properly addressed.

VI.   KNOWLEDGE OF FEDERAL CASE AND ADDITIONAL CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST WHICH INCENTIVIZE BRUCE RIVERS TO ACT AGAINST ME  

A.   Introduction

July 8, 2024:

• I filed my federal civil rights complaint in the MN District Court on July 8, 2024. 2

This complaint includes Bruce Rivers as a defendant.

July 15, 2024 at 9:32 AM:

• Bruce  Rivers  personally  signed  for  the  USPS  Priority  Mail  Express  Envelope  that

contained the summons 3, complaint 4, and motion for TRO 5 that served to initiate my

case.

2 ‘Guertin v. Hennepin County et al’  |  24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM -
https://www.courtlistener.com/docket/68925331/guertin-v-hennepin-county/

3 Bruce Rivers Federal Summons - 
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.mnd.216796/gov.uscourts.mnd.216796.4.
0.pdf

4 ‘Guertin v. Hennepin County et al’  |  Complaint -
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.mnd.216796/
gov.uscourts.mnd.216796.24.0.pdf

5 ‘Guertin v. Hennepin County et al’  |  Complaint -
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.mnd.216796/
gov.uscourts.mnd.216796.25.0.pdf
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July 16, 2024:

• I arrive at my 1:30 PM review hearing at approximately 1:45 PM by the time I made my

way through security, up the elevator,  and actually arrived at the court room that my

hearing was taking place in. Immediately upon stepping into the court room I spotted

Bruce who quickly pulled me out into the hallway outside of the court room where the

first thing he began talking to me about was my civil rights case that had just arrived at

his  office  the  prior  morning.  The  contents  of  our  conversation  started  out  with  him

admitting that my complaint looked very nice insofar as the presentation, after which

point one of the very first remarks he made, before we had even been able to cross to the

opposite  side  of  the  hallway  (against  the  glass  windows)  was  “It’s  going  to  get

dismissed”. 

The remainder of our conversation in the hallway mainly involved Bruce blatantly lying

to my face by repeatedly stating “you already have the discovery materials” to the point

that he eventually had to tell me to quiet down after I began loudly responding with “IF I

ALREADY HAD THE DISCOVERY MATERIALS I WOULDN’T KEEP ASKING YOU

FOR THEM !” due to my growing frustration.

After approximately 5 miutes or so in the hallway we made our way back into the court

room and sat down at the table at which point, as soon as my name was called out for the

appearance, Judge Julia Dayton Klein immediately stood up with an angry look on her

face, turned around, and started heading out the back door of the court room. When this

happened Bruce Rivers began loudly yelling “Hey! What are you doing!?” (paraphrasing)

as he was thoroughly confused about what was taking place – at which point Judge Julia

Dayton Klein glanced over her shoulder while still headed towards the door and replied

“I submitted my order of recusal yesterday!” - which served to instantly resolve Bruce’s

state of confusion as he very quickly realized that she is also one of the eleven total

defendant’s named in my civil rights lawsuit alongside himself.

After this  took place the large TV monitor that  was sitting atop a rolling cart  in  the

middle of the courtroom turned on and Judge Koch appeared on the screen to conduct my

appearance remotely. At the very beginning of interacting with the Judge, Bruce Rivers
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made a direct comment along the lines of “my client filed a federal lawsuit against the

entire court” (paraphrasing – but something sarcastic with a similar tone as this). 

This means that Bruce Rivers comment - in which he made a direct reference to the

federal civil rights case he had just gotten done discussing with me in the hallway, and

would then subsequently end up completely ignoring insofar as not responding at all –

would almost certainly have been recorded into the court transcript via the court reporter

that was present in the court room.

July 18, 2024:

• Bruce Rivers sent me a text message that simply read – “Did you get a complete copy of

your file?” - to which I responded with a very long, and detailed message in which I

make multiple direct references to the federal civil rights case that he is a defendant in.

My initial reply to this text message was constructed based on the assumption that it was

actually Bruce Rivers female companion he had been with at my court appearance due to

not being familiar with the telephone number at all which resulted in a reply message

from Bruce that stated – “This is Bruce Rivers. I changed my phone number”

◦ Video verification of these text messages taking place on Bruce Rivers new cell phone 
number can be downloaded via the following link:
Bruce Rivers New # : D  rive.  P  roton.me/urls/NDERJNF734#Mfc9c0LYDS3Y  
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August 18, 2024:

• I submitted my corrected ‘Request for Entry of Default’ 6 against Bruce Rivers into my

civil rights case, along with the proper affidavit I had failed to properly include with my

initial request.

6 ‘Request for Entry of Default’ Against Bruce M. Rivers - 
https://storage.courtlistener.com/recap/gov.uscourts.mnd.216796/
gov.uscourts.mnd.216796.63.0.pdf
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August 29, 2024 at 9:44 AM:

• The court clerk submits an ‘Entry of Default’ against Bruce M. Rivers into my civil rights

case. 
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August 29, 2024 at 12:28 PM:

• Bruce Rivers calls me from his new telephone number and discusses my lawsuit against

him. This telephone call lasted for 15 minutes and 35 seconds.

During this telephone call Bruce Rivers blatant, and unavoidable conflict of interest couldn’t

have  been  any  clearer  as  the  conversation  seemingly  shifted  back  and  forth  between  him

actually accusing me of being ‘incompetent’ based upon the large volume of evidence exhibits I

submitted with my civil rights complaint, only to then suddenly shift back over to him trying to
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assure me that all of my criminal charges were going to be completely dismissed if I simply

went along with the false narrative of my supposed ‘incompetence’ that I have been actively

fighting against the entire time.

I once again pointed out that the entire case could be completely dismissed altogether if  he

would properly deal with the fraudulent discovery issue that I have been consistently addressing

since the filing of my very first, pro se court motion ever that was submitted on January 5, 2024.

At this point Bruce directly accused me of being incorrect about the fraudulent discovery issue

in a way that served to try and invalidate the entire claim itself which is the point when I made

the statement “My entire career is based on being a computer wizard Bruce. Do you think that

maybe someone who traveled  around the  world  getting  paid  to  play  with  computers  might

possibly also be able to process images and understand the technicalities of image manipulation

in a competent manner?” (paraphrasing). I also reminded him of the fact that my granted patent

that  I  was  personally  responsible  for  assembling  actually  contains  a  direct  mention  of  Ai

technology being used, and also revolves entirely around advanced video and image processing

methodologies which would require the exact same skillset one would need to very easily be

able to conduct bulk processing of images, metadata, and conduct an analysis that is able to

determine whether or not an image is manipulated by an advanced ai model.

I additionally pointed out that a large volume of the evidence I essentially ‘dumped’ into the

record of my civil rights case was simply all of the official records from the previous court

proceedings and that it  isn’t  exactly all  that difficult or time consuming to assemble such a

volumous  amount  of  information  when  I  am utilizing  custom Python  scripts  to  handle  the

labeling, PDF bookmarking, etc.

The fact that he has directly lied to my face multiple times insofar as litrerally trying to convince

me that ‘up is down’ and ‘left is right’ has understandably caused me to not trust a single word,

or promise he makes to me at this point regarding the outcome of my case, or anything for that

matter. Our back and forth regarding the fraudulent discovery materials is what served as the

resoning behind the text messages I would end up sending to him directly following our phone

call about the ‘Entry of Default’ that had just been entered against him a few hours prior.
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• Video verification of these text messages taking place on Bruce Rivers new cell phone 
number can be downloaded via the following link:

Bruce Rivers New # : D  rive.  P  roton.me/urls/NDERJNF734#Mfc9c0LYDS3Y  
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B.   Bruce Rivers Ongoing Conflict of Interest Involving YouTube That I Directly 
       Addressed In June of 2023 

• My email to Bruce Rivers on June 16, 2023 can now be viewed as a sign of things to come

when viewed in hindsight as I directly addressed an inherent, and unavoidable conflict of

interest that existed, and still currently exists to this day but has never been addressed at all

by Bruce Rivers. 
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C.   Conclusion

• Bruce  Rivers  proven knowledge  of  my  lawsuit  aginst  him,  his  decision  to  ignore  it

insofar as not responding at all to it, while at the same time refusing to withdrawal as my

defense counsel despite one of the most blatantly obvious conflicts of interest imaginable

defies  all  common sense,  competence,  and basic  logic  that  one would expect  from a

highly skilled, and well known attorney of his stature.
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The fact  that  I  had already directly  addressed a  previous,  and still  currently ongoing

conflict of interest surrounding his YouTube stardom all the way back in June of 2023

that has also never been addressed by him, now serves in hindsight to be a rather clear

indicator of all that has continued to take place since – with his May 22, 2023 comment

to me over the phone about “powerful people keeping an eye on me” being the very clear

moment that everything suddenly changed.

I am in of the opinion that the actions and inactions of Bruce Rivers, and the highly

unusual decisions he continues to make regarding his continuing representation of me,

and outright refusal to act on my requested defense strategy is one of the biggest ‘red

flags’ ever insofar as amounting to a bright, flashing red emergency light that serves to

alert everyone in the vicinity that there is absolutely nothing at all about my current court

proceedings  that  could be considered normal,  unbiased,  fair,  or  impartial  in  any way

whatsoever - even to a casual observer with a very limited understanding, and no formal

education in the field of law - like myself for example.

VII.   DIRECT MENTION TO ME OF EXTERNAL INFLUENCES AND
SUBSEQUENT DENIAL THAT STATEMENT WAS EVER MADE  

A.   Introduction

May 22, 2023 at 3:13 PM:

• At 3:13 PM on May 22, 2023 I called Bruce Rivers to enquire about whehter or not he

had his son take a look at the Ai generated, backdated YouTube videos I had analyzed

after Bruce Rivers previously admitted to me on the phone “I have no idea what I’m

looking at here” (paraphrasing) insofar as Bruce Rivers not being versed in technology or

image analysis. When I asked this question Bruce Replied to me with “Yeah I did, you

have some very powerful people keeping an eye on you” to which I replied “I know.

That’s why I shot a gun off in my apartment.” Bruce Rivers then changed the subject, but

when I understandably shifted the topic back to his previous comment he replied with

“We’ll talk about it in person/later, I don’t trust that this line is secure” (paraphrasing).
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Video verification of all Bruce Rivers call logs can be downloaded via the following link:

◦ Bruce Rivers Call Log : Drive.Proton.Me/urls/YBXZZW8F8R#nv1gLSyGmA8p
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May 23, 2023:

• Based on the fact that the origination of my criminal charges themselves revolve entirely 
around my patent, and claims of these very same ‘powerful people’ - this statement 
obviously freaked me out quite a bit and so the following day I sent duplicate text 
messages to multiple friends for the purpose of at least letting everyone know about what 
Bruce Rivers said to me in case anything were to happen to me, as this obviously caused 
a renewed sense of concern and worry about my personal safety and well-being in 
general.
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August of 2023:
After stumbling upon a YouTube video being presented by Paul Debevec on behalf of
Netflix and Eyeline Studios that contained a rotating treadmill that matched mine which
was claimed to be from 2006 I immediately recognized it as fraudulent at which point I
contacted  my  patent  attorney.  This  also  caused  me  to  realize  that  various  LinkedIn
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searches I had been noticing in my email and initially considered to be a positive sign
initially were actually indicative of more nefarious intentions, as there were two searches
by ‘USC Cinema’ that occurred, as well as a search by the US Army Reserves – both of
which  are  directly  connected  to  Paul  Debevec.  It  is  important  to  point  out  that  my
LinkedIn page has NEVER had any employment history added, work background, etc.
and for  all  intents  and purposes  it  had  been completely  abandoned,  unused,  and not
promoted at all from the moment I thought up the idea for my patent in early February of
2021 – meaning these  post-facto  searches  I  compiled  after  this  realization  are  rather
compelling evidence of coordinated surveillance and knowledge of my business dealings,
court proceedings – AND – it serves to validate Bruce Rivers previous comment to me.
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My LinkedIn search analysis  also involved an in depth examination into the various entities

themselves that were searching for me. This involved the process of conducting ‘cross-linking’

between various entities insofar as establishing direct connections between various entities –

some of  which involve  entities  in  entirely  different  areas  of  business  yet  still  have a  direct

connection through people that work there.

Additionally  I  added  my  own  personal,  business,  and  court  related  events  to  the  same

chronological timeline I laid out the LinkedIn search data on which served to establish a perfect

correlation  between  my  own  personal  events  and  various  entities  and  search  count  spikes

occurring at exactly the same time. All of the data was obtained solely from automated LinkedIn

emails, with me collecting all of them spanning back to the inception of my patent itself.
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B.   My Patent Revolutionizes Military Training Simulations

• I conducted an analysis of my InfiniSet, Inc. US Patent 11,577,177 which revealed that it

has “vast” implications in the field of military training simulations among an additional

‘vast’ amount of other use cases across a large range of other rapidly expanding, and

highly lucrative industries. 
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The fact that my patent ‘revolutionizes’ military training simulations and is worth MANY billions

of dollars, is the entire reason that my life has turned into a completely surreal movie script

currently. If I hadn’t thought up a good idea and filed a patent for it I would be much better off

currently as I passed up awesome job offers that would’ve served to advance my career in digital

media design to the next level – instead I turned down multiple offers so that I could focus all of

my time and effort solely on turning my idea, and business into a reality.
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Estimated Patent Value Over 20 Years:

• Below is a conservative ‘rough estimate’ value of the technology contained in my patent

over the 20 year lifespan of exclusive rights that a patent provides.

93

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 93

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 104 of 128



94

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 94

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 105 of 128



95

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 95

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 106 of 128



C.   Conclusion

• Bruce Rivers statement he made about “powerful people keeping an eye on me” is not

only directly supported by a substantial amount of text messages, emails, call logs, and

various  other  digital  communications  of  mine  in  which  I  am directly  addressing  the

statement he made to me over the phone – but has since been further supported by a

substantial amount of additional evidence, and information which wasn’t discovered until

many months after the May 22, 2023 statement was made but which all serves to validate

it in rather compelling ways. 

◦ Billions of dollars = “Powerful people keeping an eye on me”

◦ ‘Revolutionizing’ military training simulations = “Powerful  people keeping an
eye on me”

• It is not ‘delusional’ to believe that a patent as ‘revolutionary’, and valuable as
mine would be highly likely to result in a large amount of unwanted, and nefarious
attention – It would instead be delusional for someone to claim that this wouldn’t
be the likely outcome..

VIII.   FAILURE TO FOLLOW THROUGH ON A LEGAL PROMISE MADE  

A.   Introduction

July 28, 2023:

• On Friday July 28, 2023 I received a letter in the mail from ‘Michael Biglow’ who claimed

he was representing  me in  the  civil  commitment  proceedings  that  were scheduled  for

Tuesday August 1, 2023. Notably this was the first time I became aware that a petition for

civil commitment had been filed against me, that I had been found ‘incompetent’ following

my July 7, 2023 hearing, or that I was now required to attend a hearing just four days away.

Being that the finding of incompetency was decided by the judge, and then subsequently

submitted  into  my criminal  case  record  on July  13,  2023 – and the  petition  for  civil

commitment was filed against me on July 20, 2023 - I don’t think it’s asking too much to

assume that my awesome criminal defense attorney I’ve known for over twenty years, and
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paid $10,000 to retain,  could’ve at the very least  alerted me to these rather significant

events that were taking place without my knowledge.

The fact that my awareness of any of this was the result of a letter arriving in the mail from

someone I had never met before who now claimed he was my new attorney was definitely

‘shocking’ to say the least – which is why the first person I contacted after receiving this

letter was Bruce Rivers, who in turn assured me that he would be the one representing me

in my civil commitment hearings, and that I had nothing at all to worry about.

97

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 97

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 108 of 128



August 1, 2023:

• Rivers flow of representation runs dry, as he is nowhere to be found and I do not receive

any  response  from from his  office  after  reaching  out  to  the  morning  of  my  hearing

desperately seeking some sort of guidance and advice insofar as how I should proceed.
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B.   Conclusion

• Bruce Rivers told me he was going to represent me in my civil commitment proceedings

and  then  pulled  a  disappearing  act  which  left  me  unsure  of  what  my  options  were,

whether or not I should’ve even been participating in the civil commitment proceedings
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that afternoon, and what the ‘right path’ forward was – I was left without any sort of

guidance or trustworthy advice to make me feel like I wasn’t possibly making a huge

mistake  that  serving  to  put  myself  at  risk  of  being  unjustly  committed  to  a  mental

institution during the surprise civil commitment proceedings in which I had no adequate

opportunity or time available to even understand what exactly was taking place, etc.

IX.   FAILURE TO PRESENT EXCULPATORY EVIDENCE DURING MY
COMPETENCY HEARING  

A.   Introduction

July 7, 2023:

• Bruce Rivers failed to adequately defend me during my competency hearing that took place

on July 7, 2023 by failing to present any of the substantial amount of exculpatory evidence

I provided him with prior to the hearing. In addition he also advised me not to present any

of my own evidence that I had spent time personally preparing, and printing in order to

participate in my defense during the hearing.

Bruce Rivers was provided with every single document that I also provided Dr. Jill Rogstad

with during my March 3, 2023 Rule 20 exam meeting at the Hennepin County Government

Center, as I took the time to print two, duplicate stacks of the evidence exhibits I had

personally prepared, and printed prior to attending the meeting. One stack was provided to

Dr. Jill Rogstad, and when the meeting was over I then walked across the street to Bruce

Rivers office and dropped of a large, sealed, manilla envelope that contained the very saem

documents. 

Furthermore, Bruce Rivers was CC’d on a substantial amount of additional emails I sent to

Dr. Jill Rogstad which also contained a vast amount of information that would’ve served to

present my obvious ‘competency’ during the hearing.

Some examples of this exculpatory evidence includes the following:
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B.   Conclusion

• Bruce  Rivers  failure  to  present  exculpatory  evidence  at  my  competency  hearing  is

objectively deficient, and there is reasonable probability that had he adequately defended

me  by  utilizing  the  available,  and  substantial  amoutn  of  exculpatory  evidence  he

maintained that the hearing would’ve lead to afavorable outcome for me.

X.   MISLEADING STATEMENTS WHICH LEAD TO A LACK OF INFORMED
CONSENT  

January 15, 2024:

• On January 15, 2024, Rivers told Guertin "no court," leading to an order the next day

stating "all parties agree to a finding of incompetency prior to the hearing." This indicates

there was no informed consent, and Guertin was misled about the proceedings and their

outcomes.
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XI.   REFUSAL TO PROVIDE ME WITH DISCOVERY OR MY RULE 20 EXAM
DESPITE REPEATED REQUESTS  
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I didn’t end up receiving the January 2024, Rule 20 exam or the discovery I am requesting in
these emails and texts until July 16, 2024. This means that it tookthe filing of a federal lawsuit
against Bruce Rivers for him to finally provide me with the discovery I had been requesting for
many months which also included phone calls to Bruce, along with multiple pro se filed motions
for both discovery as well as production of medical records. 

And I still have not received the authentic discovery materials currently..
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XII.   BRUCE RIVERS IS NOT ADVOCATING FOR ME AT ALL AND MUST
IMMEDIATELY WITHDRAWAL AS MY DEFENSE COUNSEL  

A.   Introduction

• I have made multiple direct requests to Bruce Rivers concerning the fraudulent discovery

as well my desire to contest the determination of my supposed ‘incompetency’ which is

also inherently fraudulent insofar as the entire process being tainted by the very same

fraudulent discovery materials.

108

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 108

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 119 of 128



109

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 109

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 120 of 128



110

Exhibit AA | Index 03 | p. 110

CASE 0:24-cv-02646-JRT-DLM   Doc. 77   Filed 09/24/24   Page 121 of 128



B.   Conclusion

• There is no excuse, or explanation for Bruce Rivers current actions and inactions, as they

pertain to my case. Bruce Rivers continuous gaslighting, in which he has not only been

lying directly to my face about things he knows, that I know are not true – while also

continuing to maintain his strategy of ‘playing dumb’ by pretending he is unable to grasp,

or  understand  any  aspect  of  the  fraudulent  discovery,  is  becoming  more,  and  more

ridiculous  and  absurd  at  this  point.  Being  that  he  is  directly  involved  in  obtaining,

concealing, and disseminating fraudulent discovery materials to one of his clients though I

can see how it could technically be considered a viable strategy on his part.

It  is  rather  pertinent  to  point  out  that  my actions  have  remained consistent,  and laser

focused throughout the entirety of my fight for justice thus far. This is substantiated by the

fact that the very first pro se court motion I ever filed in my life was a ‘Demand or Request

for Discovery’ whose sole purpose was obtaining authentic discovery materials after I had

identified anomolies in the first set I was provided with on August 3, 2023.

Ironically Bruce Rivers even made a direct mention to me about the pro se discovery

request I submitted on January 5th of this year not long after it was filed. He brought it up

briefly during a phone call that took place in January by casually mentioning something

along the lines  of “you shouldn’t  do that  otherwise the court  might  not think you are

represented by me” – While at the same time he never asked me why I was filing it, or ever

offered to personally provide me with the discovery he obviously knew I was interested in

obtaining. It was in fact this brief comment by Bruce Rivers that let me know I needed to

keep submitting additional pro se motions after that point due to his completely illogical

behavior surrounding the entire discovery topic – the same one I have been relentlessly

pursuing ever since.

Based upon my many pro se motions, phone calls, emails, and text messages, in which I am

essentially  hollering  “DISCOVERY! DISCOVERY!  DISCOVERY!”… over  … and ...

over … and … over, try to imagine how it must come across when Bruce Rivers looks at

me in the hallway outside of the courtroom and tells me over and over “You already have

the discovery materials” …. “I already gave you the discovery materials” as he keeps a

straight face the entire time – Or when he calls me up on the phone just hours after an entry
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of default was submitted against him in my civil rights case so he can argue against my

preferred legal strategy by trying to convince me that my belief of fraudulent discovery

materials being involved in my case is likely just a symptom of my newly acquired mental

health issues that the Hennepin County court was generous enough to provide me with a

diagnose for - the same ones that Bruce Rivers has not only failed to contest on my behalf

as I have been repeatedely requesting, but is instead now actively trying to convince me are

legitimate due to the fact that it would serve his own personal interests insofar as ensuring

that his direct involvement in a criminal conspiracy against one of his own clients is never

brought to light, or thoroughly investigated.

The Bruce Rivers I used to know has officially left the building...

XIII.   MY PREFERRED LEGAL STRATEGY MOVING FORWARD  

1. Bruce Rivers MUST WITHDRAWL   as my defense counsel as I do not trust him at all.

There has been a complete breakdown of the attorney / client relationship – all of which is

the result of his blatantly unethical behavior and failure to advocate and defend me. 

How  can  the  court  or  Bruce  Rivers  justify  forcing  me  to  maintain  representation  by

someone who I have lost all trust and respect for? I do not want to call him, I do not want to

meet with him at his office, I no longer believe a single word he says to me. 

This means I currently have no defense counsel to advocate for me. This situation must be

resolved.

0. I want an immediate halt to the ongoing fraud currently being waged against within the

courts to ensure that my court proceedings are able to continue forward in a manner that is

based on the principals of impartiality, and non-prejudicial decisions pertaining to my case.

1. I want a continuance granted for my October 1, 2024 review hearing until I am able to

retain new defense counsel that I trust, as well as an alotment of the additional time that

would be needed to meet with my new defense counsel, discuss my case, and devise an

effective defense startegy for moving forward.
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2. I want to actively contest the current determination of my competency based upon the fact

that it has been irrefutably proven that fraudulent discovery materials were provided to the

psychological examiner who conducted my civil commitment exam in August of 2023.

Even if there were no fraudulent discovery materials involved in the current scenario I

would still be seeking to contest the current determination of my supposed ‘incompetency’

which  I  believe  is  rather  easy  to  refute,  based  solely  on  presenting  evidence  of  my

competency that serves to satisfy all of the established Minnesota case law that pertains to

competency determinations.

3. I  want  a  formal  ‘Motion to  Compel  Discovery’ /  ‘Demand or Request  for  Discovery’

submitted into my case that seeks the provision of the entire set of  authentic discovery

photographs - including the 28 images that were initially identified as cropped, which were

then missing from the second set of discovery materials provided to me by Bruce Rivers.

4. If the prosecution refuses, or is unable to provide the entire, full set of authentic discovery

photos I would then like a ‘Motion to Dismiss’ submitted into my criminal case which

seeks the dismissal of all of my charges due to a failure to provide discovery, as required by

Rule 9.

5. If there were any need that arises for a third Rule 20.01 exam it must be conducted by an

entirely neutral third party that has absolutely ZERO affiliations with the Hennepin County

court or judicial system due to everything that has, and is still currently taking place in my

case.
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XIV.   MY DOCUMENTED REFUSAL OF THE 3RD RULE 20 EXAM MEETING
AND MY REASON FOR REFUSING  

I refused to participate in a third Rule 20.01 exam due to not having effective defense counsel

currently,  in  addition  to  very  real  concerns  about  the  frauduelnt  discovery  issue  that  remains

unresolved.  My  decision  to  not  participate  was  clearly  communicated  to  the  psychological

examiner, Katheryn Cranbrook, who emailed me on August 5, 2024 for the purpose of locking in a

scheduled time that my third Rule 20 exam meeting could take place.

It is my intention to ensure that my refusal to participate in the third Rule 20 exam is thoroughly

documented  insofar  as  ensuring  that  the  refusal  itself,  along  with  my  reason  for  refusal  are

recorded into the public record, as well as the record of my court proceedings due to the fact that

my  current  criminal  case  record  (27-CR-23-1886)  shows  two  very  recent  ‘Rule  20  Progress

Report’ entries even though I have never participated in a third Rule 20 exam at all.
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XV.   VERIFICATION OF THIS COMPLAINT

I, Matthew D. Guertin, under penalty of perjury, hereby certify that the statements of fact

and content contained within this complaint are true and correct to the best of my knowledge,

information, and belief. I further declare that the information contained within this complaint

was personally prepared and compiled by myself.

Dated:  September 23, 2024 Respectfully submitted,

  /s/ Matthew D. Guertin    

Matthew David Guertin
Complainer
1075 Traditions Ct.
Chaska, MN  55318
Telephone: 763-221-4540
MattGuertin@protonmail.com
www.MattGuertin.com
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